1982

State of Utah v. Richard Allen Bradshaw : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is a criminal case where the Defendant and Appellant, RICHARD ALLEN BRADSHAW, is charged with Count I, Third-Degree Felony offense of producing or growing marijuana; and Count II, possession of Marijuana with the intent to distribute for value.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The case was tried by a Jury which found the Appellant guilty of producing or growing marijuana, a Third-Degree Felony, and guilty of the lesser included offense of simple possession, a Class "B" Misdemeanor. He was sentenced to 0 - 5 years in the State Prison.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant and Appellant seeks reversal of the Judgment,

and Judgment in his favor as a matter of law; or that failing, a new trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant lives in Milford, Beaver County, State of Utah. His home in Milford consists of a city lot and a small house located thereon. The house is located on a small hill or rise in a terrain, that requires a retaining wall along its south boundary between the Defendant's property and the neighbor's property. (Defendant's Exhibit #2, Record, P. 131). The retaining wall is approximately 3-1/2 to 4 feet high, and then the Defendant's property slopes up at an angle from the top of the retaining wall up to the south edge of his house. At the time this incident took place, a plastic fence or shield about 18 inches high was constructed on the Defendant's property up the slope from the top of the retaining wall. (Motion to Suppress Transcript, Pp. 103 and 104).

Acting on information from a confidential informant, whose name was not disclosed to the Defendant, that marijuana was growing on BRADSHAW's property, Milford City Chief of Police Officer RICHARD HANNAH and other officers went to the Defendant's neighbor's property on October 7th, 1980. (Record, P. 80, Paragraph 9). The three officers from Beaver County and the City of Milford went upon the neighbor's property to the south of Defendant's house, and walked up to

the retaining wall. According to Officer HANNAH's testimony, they observed suspect plants growing about 2 or 3 feet back on Defendant's property behind the blind or plastic fence-type structure, which was obviously built to shield or hide the plants. Officer COX, a Beaver County Deputy Sheriff, then leaned across the retaining wall and reached into the Bradshaw property and plucked three leaves of the plant. (Motion to Suppress Transcript, P. 102, line 14).

The officer then proceeded to the Justice of the Peace's office with the three plucked leaves, with the purpose of contacting the Justice of the Peace and requesting a search warrant, authorizing a search of Defendant's premises. On the basis of their observations, and on the basis of the leaves which they had plucked and taken with them, they requested a search warrant from the Justice of the Peace. (Motion to Suppress Transcript, P. 109, lines 20 - 23; P. 111, lines 18 - 25; P. 112, lines 1 - 4). A search warrant was issued by the Justice of the Peace (Record, P. 26), and the three officers, who first had gone to the Defendant's property, and several other police officers of Beaver County and Milford City, under the direction of RICHARD HANNAH, returned to the Defendant's premises at about 6:15 p.m., on the evening of October 7th, 1980. Upon arriving at the BRADSHAW premises, the officers went upon the Defendant's property, and began to search the same. During the process of searching the premises, the officers pulled up

many suspect plants, and placed them in three black garbage sacks. Some of the suspect plants which were seized were those which the officers had originally seen and plucked leaves from, prior to the search. Other plants were obtained from a structure located behind the house, described as a false wall with window panes over it alongside a root cellar. The officers also took suspect plant out of the root cellar itself, and remnants of suspect plants and other paraphernalia out of the house itself. (Motion to Suppress Transcript, Pp. 84 - 88). Shortly thereafter, the Defendant returned to his house after dark just as the search was being concluded, whereupon the officers advised him of the search, and placed him under arrest for producing a controlled substance and possession of marijuana with intent to distribute for value.

The only written evidence of the search warrant proceedings held before the Justice of the Peace are the affidavit and the search warrant themselves. No record of evidence taken by the Justice of the Peace was kept, and no verbatim recording of testimony or evidence taken was kept. In addition, the original affidavit in support of the search warrant was not executed by the requesting officer, Officer RICHARD HANNAH, in the proper place located at the bottom of the affidavit form, which requires his signature and oath before the Justice of the Peace. However, the requesting officer, RICHARD HANNAH, did write in his name at the top of

the affidavit form in the blank provided for the purpose of identifying the person filling out the affidavit. He testified that he wrote his name at that point on the form, for the purpose of identifying himself, and that otherwise he did not sign it as an affirmation that the affidavit was correct. (Motion to Suppress Transcript, P. 122, lines 110 - 125; P. 123, lines 1 - 10). The search warrant was issued to "any peace officer of the State of Utah." (Record, P. 26).

Other proceedings took place before the Milford Justice of the Peace, the Circuit Court, and the District Court for Beaver County which are significant to this Appeal. Primarily, they involve the Defendant's objections to the appointment of an attorney as Public Defender in his case, who suffered a conflict of interest, because the same attorney was the Milford City Attorney, and therefore, represented the Milford City Police Chief, the Chief Officer in this case. The Beaver County Attorney, in the prosecution of this case, attempted to force the Defendant to accept the services of the said Beaver County Public Defender, in spite of the conflict of interest. (See Record, Pp. 11 - 14).

Also, prior to the trial on this case, the Defendant filed his Motion to Suppress Evidence seized under the search. (Record, P. 55). The Motion to Suppress alleged that the evidence seized was inadmissible for the reason that the search was illegal and contrary to the constitu-

tional rights of the Defendant. It also alleged that the search warrant was faulty, for the reason that it was based on false or incorrect affidavit and was, therefore, issued without probable cause, and was obtained by other unlawful means. After hearing evidence on Defendant's Motion to Suppress, the District Court judge ruled that the initial plucking of the three leaves was an unreasonable search, and suppressed that evidence, but allowed the search warrant to stand, and found that the search conducted after the search warrant was issued was lawful, and that the evidence seized after the warrant was admissible evidence against the Defendant. (Motion to Suppress Transcript, Pp. 171-174).

At the trial, the District Court Judge did not allow the admission of the three leaves into evidence, but did allow Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 which were the suspect plants seized after the search warrant was issued. However, the Court initially would not allow the admission of the evidence obtained after the search, for the reason that the Prosecution could not lay a proper foundation for the admission, because it had misplaced a box or container in which some of the evidence had been mailed to the State Chemist's office to be analyzed. Over the objection of the Defendant, the Court granted the Prosecution's motion for continuance, to allow Prosecution to see if it could find the missing box and samples required for the foundation and introduction of the seized evidence against the Defendant. After a two-day

continuance, the trial was reconvened and the Prosecution recalled all of its witnesses, and reintroduced all of its evidence, including the missing box or container, which had been mailed by the Beaver County Sheriff's Office to the State Chemist's office in Ogden, UT, and then returned by mail, but misplaced approximately one year's time before it was found, and introduced at the trial.

ARGUMENT I

DEFENDANT AND APPELLANT'S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS AGAINST UNLAWFUL OR UNREASONABLE SEARCH AND SEIZURE WERE VIOLATED, AND THE SEIZED EVIDENCE SHOULD HAVE BEEN SUPPRESSED BY THE COURT. SINCE THE ONLY EVIDENCE AGAINST THE DEFENDANT WAS THE UNLAWFULLY SEIZED EVIDENCE, HIS CONVICTION MUST BE REVERSED.

The Chief of Police, RICHARD HANNAH, and two other officers, acted on information received from an informant about marijuana growing on RICHARD BRADSHAW's home property located in Milford, Utah. They went to a neighbor's property for the purpose of viewing Defendant's yard, and looking for marijuana. They walked up to a retaining wall between the neighbor's property and the Defendant's and saw the suspect plants. DENNIS COX, Deputy Sheriff, acting on instruction from RICHARD HANNAH, reached up and into the Defendant's property, and picked three leaves of the plants. They then went directly to the Justice of the Peace's office. There, they telephoned the County Attorney, and advised him of what they had seen and the leaves that they had picked. The

County Attorney prepared the affidavit and search warrant, and it was transported to Milford. A search warrant was issued by the Justice of the Peace. (Record, P. 26).

The issue is whether or not the proceeds of the search should have been suppressed, under the Fruit of the Poisonous Tree doctrine. Generally stated, the rule is to "the effect that evidence which is located by the police as a result of information and leads obtained from illegally seized evidence, constitutes the fruit of the poisonous tree, and is inadmissible in a criminal prosecution." (43 ALR 3d 385). The exclusionary rule is applicable to state criminal prosecution. (Mapp v Ohio, 367 US 643, 6 L Ed 2d 1081). The rule has been characterized as a means of enforcing a Defendant's rights against unreasonable search and seizure. (43 ALR 3d 394).

In this case, Officer HANNAH and Officer COX testified that they used the three illegally seized leaves as the part of the basis for obtaining the search warrant. (Suppression Hearing Transcript, Pp. 109, 111, 132 - 134). After obtaining the warrant, the officers went back and seized the plants from which the leaves were plucked, and quantities of other plants which were used to convict the Defendant. Without that evidence, there would have been no other evidence against the Defendant, and therefore, his conviction may stand or fail based on whether or not it should have been excluded under the Fruit of the Poisonous Tree doctrine.

In U. S. v Paroutian, 299 F 2d 486, an agent of an apartment owner let peace officers into Graziani's apartment. The officers did not have a search warrant. While there, they discovered a false wall in one of the closets. Two days later, an officer returned to the apartment and linked Defendant Paroutian to the apartment. A month later, the officers returned and discovered drugs behind the false wall in the closet and a letter which convicted the Defendant. The United States Court of Appeals, Second Circuit, found that the first two entries into the apartment were unlawful; and since the false wall was first noticed during the illegal entries, the subsequent discovery of the drugs and letter behind the wall were "fruits of the poisonous tree", and should have been suppressed by the trial court. The Court stated at Page 488, last paragraph, that:

"the purpose of the rule against admission of illegally seized evidence is the protection of the rights of privacy; by quarantining evidence gathered in this manner, it is hoped that the zeal of enforcement agencies for such methods of procuring evidence will be curbed....consistent with this broad purpose, the rule extends beyond evidence directly seized in an unlawful search, to prescribe use of all evidence obtained as an indirect result of such illegal activity -- the "fruit of the poisonous tree". See also United States v McCunn, 38 F 2d 246; Staples v United States, 320 F 2d 817; Simmons v State, 277 P 2d 196.

The Prosecution in this case argued that the suspect plants were in "plain view" and, therefore, they could have obtained the search warrant without the unlawful seizure of

the leaves, and the Court so found. Perhaps, they could have, but the fact is they did not. They proceeded to violate Defendant's rights against unreasonable search and seizure, and went upon his property and picked leaves from behind his fence or shield. (Suppression Hearing Transcript, P. 157, Lines 13 - 25; P. 158, Lines 1 - 3).

The illegal seizure of the leaves cannot be severed from the search warrant, and the search justified on the basis that plain view would have justified the search without the illegal seizure.

The limits on Plain View are as follows:

1) Plain view alone is never enough to justify a warrantless seizure; and

2) The discovery of the evidence must be inadvertent (Coolidge v New Hampshire, 403 US 443, 29 L Ed 2d 564. See also 68 AmJur 2d, Search, Section 88). The majority opinion of the Supreme Court of the United States conclude in the case that the Plain View doctrine operates only, where officers have a prior justification for intrusion and came inadvertently across a piece of evidence.

In this case, the Chief HANNAH and Deputy COX did not inadvertently view the alleged marijuana behind the plastic shield or guard located 5 - 6 feet up on the BRADSHAW premises. They went there specifically looking for the suspect marijuana plants, as a result of information from a confidential informant. When they got there, they reached over or

went upon the BRADSHAW property, behind his shield or fence, and picked some of the plants. They went directly to the Justice of the Peace, and procured a search warrant. Then, they went back and seized the plants, and used them as the only convicting evidence against the Defendant.

A similar situation is found in State of Washington v Johnson, 559 P 2d 1380, where the Prosecution attempted to justify a search of a suitcase and car trunk on the basis of the Plain View doctrine. The police stopped a car they suspected of carrying a suitcase containing drugs. The driver gave her consent to open the trunk. The officers saw what they said were drugs, through a crack in the suitcase. The evidence lead to the confession of the Defendant. The Supreme Court of Washington held that the search of the suitcase was unreasonable, even though the officers could see the contents through the crack, because they did not inadvertently discover the drugs. They had been informed earlier by informants and other information that the suitcase probably contained drugs. They went looking for them in the suitcase -- very similar to the way Officer HANNAH and Deputy COX went looking for marijuana plants behind the BRADSHAW fence in this case. The Plain View doctrine did not render admissible the narcotics in the Johnson case just cited, and does not allow the admission of the seized plants in this case under the search warrant, because the plain view relied on by the Prosecution did not meet the requirements

of the Coolidge v New Hampshire case cited above.

Since the evidence seized under the search warrant was the fruit of the first unlawful search, it should have been suppressed by the Trial Court.

ARGUMENT II

THE SEARCH WARRANT WAS ILLEGAL, FOR THE REASON THAT IT WAS ISSUED ON AN AFFIDAVIT THAT WAS NOT PROPERLY EXECUTED OR SIGNED, AS REQUIRED BY THE LAW.

The Utah Code of Criminal Procedure 77-23-3(1) states that "a search warrant shall not issue except upon probable cause supported by oath or affirmation." 77-23-4(1) states constitutional provision that "all evidence to be considered by a magistrate in the issuance of a warrant shall be given on oath...." The Constitution of Utah similarly requires an oath to support the issuance of a search warrant.

The affidavit in support of the search warrant was not properly signed by the requesting officer, RICHARD HANNAH. (Record, P. 26). HANNAH testified that he wrote his name in at the top of the affidavit form, for purposes of identification, but did not sign his name as an affirmation to the affidavit.

On redirect examination, Mr. HANNAH testified that he put his name on the top of the affidavit form to identify himself as the peace officer requesting the warrant. (Suppression hearing Transcript, P. 118, Lines 7 - 25). On re-

cross examination, Officer HANNAH stated again that he wrote his name on the affidavit to identify himself, and specifically the question was asked:

Line 14, Page 22

Q "And it was not placed on the document as affirmation of your oath that the affidavit was correct, was it?

A "No. Not -- not the top signature."

Lines 3 - 9, P. 123

Q (By Mr. Anderson) I'm talking about the one that's in the Court's file. [Record, P. 26] If you want to look at it again, you may. I think you've looked at it several times."

A "No, I did not sign that one."

Q "You did not sign that one that's in the Court's file under oath then, did you, before Judge Cook?"

A "No."

Then Officer HANNAH testified that the affidavit served on RICHARD BRADSHAW at the time of his arrest was also not signed by him on the bottom line, and was a copy of the original in the file which did not contain his signature. (Suppression Hearing Transcript, Pp. 124 - 126.)

Since the warrant was not based on an oath or affirmation in writing, it was not properly based in law, and therefore, it was illegal. The proceeds of the search should have been suppressed by the Court.

ARGUMENT III

EVIDENCE WAS INTRODUCED AGAINST THE DEFENDANT WITHOUT THERE BEING A PROPER FOUNDATION OR CHAIN OF POSSESSION ESTABLISHED, WHERE THE SAMPLE WAS MAILED TO THE STATE CHEMIST AND LOST FOR A YEAR.

In this case, the chief and only evidence against the Defendant were three black plastic bags of material seized in the search.

Exhibit #1 was a plastic bag containing items taken from inside the house belonging to the Defendant. (Transcript of Trial, P. 103). Exhibit #2 was a bag containing material seized from the slope along the south of the house. (Transcript of Trial, P. 104). Exhibit #3 was a bag containing material seized from a planter built along the root cellar directly behind the house. (Transcript of Trial, P. 108).

It is important for the Court to note that the trial in this case was tried in two days, or two segments. The first day of the trial was November 9th, 1981; the second day was November 12th, 1981. The Court will note that there are two transcripts. The first is dated November 9th, 1981, and is the proceedings of that day; the second is dated November 12th, 1981, and is the proceedings for that day.

During the first day of the trial of November 9th, 1981, the Prosecution offered Exhibits 1, 2, and 3. All three were objected to by the Defendant, and the objections were sustained. The Court sustained Defendant's objection

to Exhibit #1, because there was no evidence that it contained marijuana. (Transcript of Trial, P. 203). Objection to Exhibit #2 was sustained, because there was no evidence that it contained marijuana. (Transcript of Trial, P. 206). Defendant's objection to Exhibit #3 was sustained, because a chemical analysis had been run on the material in Exhibit #3, and the test results were negative. (Transcript of Trial, Pp. 204 -206).

The Prosecution also introduced testimony over the objection of Defendant, concerning test run on a box of material that was mailed to the state lab, which was not available in Court. No exhibit number had been assigned, but it was referred to by the number which the State Chemist lab had assigned to it: #808. (Transcript of Trial, P. 184, Lines 20 - 25; P. 185 - 188). The Prosecution then attempted to link the box with Exhibit #3, and use it as foundation that Exhibit #3 contained marijuana, and was therefore admissible. The Court denied the attempt. In fact, the Court sustained the Defendant's objections to all the material evidence against the Defendant (see above for page references) on the grounds that there was no proper chain of possession, allowing the admission of any of the exhibits or samples. (Transcript, Pp. 213 - 219).

At any rate, on Page 219, Lines 12 - 20, the Court stated:

"Unless these gaps can be patched up in the

chain of evidence, I'm afraid my ruling all the way through is going to have to be the same, in granting the proffer of Plaintiff's Exhibit 3 in evidence [meaning Defendant's objection would be sustained like it had been on other items of evidence]. I will, however, give you an opportunity if you feel that you have the witnesses or the ability to bridge over these gaps to do that. On the other hand, if it doesn't appear that that's going to be possible, then, probably, we shouldn't take any more time trying."

At this point in the trial, it was clear to the Court, the Prosecutor, and the Defense, that no prima facie case had been made out by the Prosecution. He had called all his witnesses, and offered all his evidence, and fully presented his case to the Jury. The Court was ready to dismiss the case and not waste any more time.

The situation, at this point, in the trial was this:

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