1982

State of Utah v. Richard Allen Bradshaw : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE MARIJUANA TAKEN FROM APPELLANT'S RESIDENCE AND PROPERTY WAS PROPERLY ADMITTED AS EVIDENCE BY THE TRIAL COURT.

A. EVIDENCE DISCOVERED UNDER THE SEARCH WARRANT IS NOT FRUIT OF THE POISONOUS TREE.

During the evidence suppression hearing, appellant argued that the search warrant was based upon illegally seized evidence--the three plucked marijuana leaves--and thus derivative evidence seized under the search warrant was "fruit of the poisonous tree" and therefore inadmissible. The trial

court excluded as evidence the three marijuana leaves, but ruled, however, that the marijuana plants captured under the search warrant were admissible.

On his appeal before this Court, appellant argues that the marijuana plants seized under the search warrant should have been excluded as evidence and the lower court's failure to so rule constitutes reversible error. The relevant case law, however, belies appellant's claim and illuminates his misconstruction of the "fruit of the poisonous tree" doctrine.

The exclusionary rule of evidence was first enunciated in Weeks v. United States, 232 U.S. 383 (1914), wherein the Supreme Court held that evidence obtained by an unlawful search and seizure was not admissible against an accused in a federal court. Later, the exclusionary rule was held applicable to criminal prosecutions in state courts. Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643 (1961).

The "fruit of the poisonous tree" doctrine, which merely extended the Weeks exclusionary rule to derivative evidence, was first articulated in Nardone v. United States, 308 U.S. 338 (1939). Citing Silverthorne Lumber Co. v. United States, 251 U.S. 385 (1920), the precursor of the poisonous tree doctrine, the Nardone Court stated:

To forbid the direct use of methods thus characterized but to put no curb on their full indirect use would only invite the very methods deemed "inconsistent with ethical standards and destructive of personal liberty." What was said in a different context in Silverthorne Lumber Co. [251 U.S. at 392] . . . is pertinent here: "The essence of a provision forbidding the acquisition of evidence in a certain way is that not merely evidence so acquired shall not be used before the court, but that it shall not be used at all."

308 U.S. at 340, 341.

A standard for determining whether proffered evidence is fruit of the poisonous tree was articulated in Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471, 487, 488 (1963), quoting Maguire, Evidence of Guilt, 221 (1959):

We need not hold that all evidence is "fruit of the poisonous tree" simply because it would not have come to light but for the illegal actions of the police. Rather, the more apt question in such a case is "whether, granting establishment of the primary illegality, the evidence to which instant objection is made has been come at by exploitation of that illegality or instead by means sufficiently distinguishable to be purged of the primary taint."

Thus, the efficacy of the fruit of the poisonous tree doctrine to any given case depends on whether there exists a sufficient connection between the initial illegal search or seizure and derivative evidence obtained therefrom.

One type of insufficient connection between fruit and tree occurs if derivative evidence has a source independent of the prior, illegally seized objects. Silverthorne Lumber Co., supra, 251 U.S. at 392. This exception to the fruit of the poisonous tree doctrine is explained further in People v. Eastman, 61 Cal. App. 3d 662, 132 Cal. Rptr. 510 (1976). There, defendant was convicted of selling heroin on the strength of the assistance and information provided by two drug users. The two users offered their assistance to the police in exchange for a promise that they would not be arrested for heroin possession. The police had discovered the heroin pursuant to an illegal search of the user's home. Following his conviction, the defendant appealed arguing that the heroin evidence upon which his conviction was based should have been suppressed because it was fruit of the poisonous tree. Construing the poisonous tree doctrine articulated in Wong Sun, supra, the Fifth District Court of Appeal stated:

[T]here must be . . . a connection between the impropriety and the subsequent transaction so that it can be said, fairly, that the two transactions cannot be treated separately. In short, evidence is not rendered inadmissible against a defendant merely because there is a relationship between the evidence and some prior illegal police activity, if, for example, the evidence was obtained by the police as the result of an independent intervening act. . . .

132 Cal. Rptr. at 514. Applying this construction, the court of appeal affirmed defendant's conviction holding that the seizure of heroin which afforded the basis for his conviction was sufficiently separate from the unlawful search of the user's home, and thus the "fruit of the poisonous tree" doctrine did not apply.

In the instant case, the poisonous tree doctrine is similarly inapplicable. As Officers Hannah and Cox stood by the retaining wall, two separate, distinct and independent events occurred: first, both officers observed in open view marijuana plants growing in appellant's property; and second, following this observation, Sheriff Cox picked three leaves from a nearby marijuana plant. Based solely upon this observation before the three leaves were picked, the officers concluded that the plants growing on appellant's property were marijuana (ST 77, 134). That this conclusion was both accurate and reasonable is not for a moment in doubt. Both officers had had extensive training and much practical experience in the identification of marijuana plants (ST 81; TT 135). Furthermore, the plants actually observed by the officers were fully mature and located only three feet from the retaining wall, and thus were easily identifiable (TT 135, 136).

More importantly, the search warrant affidavit was founded solely upon the open view observation of marijuana

growing in appellant's property, and it was not based, in whole or in part, upon the subsequent seizure of the three marijuana leaves (Trial Record, p. 95). Thus, the search warrant itself was independent of the seizure of the three marijuana leaves; and as a corollary, all marijuana plants seized under the search warrant were independent also. Therefore, invoking Nardone and Wong Sun, supra, the marijuana plants seized under the search warrant were not fruit of the poisonous tree.

Appellant cites United States v. Paroutian, 299 F.2d 486 (2d Cir. 1962), as authority for his claim that the seized marijuana plants represented fruit of the poisonous tree. Paroutian, however, is distinguishable from the instant case. There, in a warrantless search of defendant's apartment, police officers uncovered heroin hydrochloride and a letter, both of which were hidden in a secret compartment in a closet. The heroin and the letter constituted the core of the government's case. Following his conviction, the defendant appealed, contending, inter alia, that the lower court erred when it failed to suppress critical evidence unearthed in the unlawful search.

The Second Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the defendant's conviction holding that evidence seized under the unlawful search represented fruit of the poisonous tree.

The court of appeals did recognize, however, the independent source exception to the poisonous tree doctrine:

The unlawful search taints all evidence obtained at the search or through leads uncovered by the search. This rule, however, extends only to facts which were actually discovered by a process initiated by the unlawful act. If information which could have emerged from an unlawful search in fact stems from an independent source, the evidence is admissible.

Id. at 489 (emphasis added).

In Paroutian, damning evidence was actually discovered by a process initiated by an unlawful act (the illegal search); thus the evidence was fruit of the poisonous tree and should have been suppressed. In the case at bar, however, the search warrant under which the marijuana plants were seized was based solely upon informant information and an open view observation--acts that were completely independent of Sheriff Cox's seizure of the three marijuana leaves. Therefore, the plants seized under the search warrant were not tainted by the earlier seizure of the marijuana leaves. Hence, the trial court properly denied appellant's motion to suppress evidence obtained under the search warrant.

B. THE POLICE OFFICERS' OPEN VIEW
OBSERVATION OF MARIJUANA LOCATED ON
APPELLANT'S PROPERTY IS NOT A FOURTH
AMENDMENT SEARCH.

Next, appellant argues that the officers' open view observation of marijuana growing on his property constitutes

an unreasonable search violating the Fourth Amendment. In addition, he contends that the plain view doctrine cannot extricate this alleged unlawful search because the officers' observation of the marijuana was not inadvertent, citing Coolidge v. New Hampshire, 403 U.S. 443 (1971).

Reliance upon the plain view doctrine and Coolidge, however, indicates appellant's confusion over basic Fourth Amendment search and seizure doctrine as applied to the instant case. The plain view doctrine, as construed in Coolidge, supra, applies when:

. . . the police officer . . . [has] a prior justification for an intrusion in the course of which he came inadvertently across a piece of evidence incriminating the accused. The doctrine serves to supplement the prior justification--whether it be a warrant for another object, hot pursuit, search incident to lawful arrest, or some other legitimate reason for being present unconnected with a search directed against the accused--and permits the warrantless seizure.

403 U.S. at 466. Thus, the plain view doctrine articulates circumstances in which evidence may be seized without a warrant.

In the instant case, however, appellant's attack, based upon Coolidge, is directed not at a seizure of evidence, but at the police officers' observation of marijuana located on appellant's property. Thus, appellant employs the wrong

case and wrong principle in constructing his Fourth Amendment attack upon the officers' initial observation. Furthermore, plain view analysis presupposes a prior valid intrusion; i.e., hot pursuit, valid arrest, or a warrant authorizing a search for objects other than those actually seized. In the instant case, however, there was no prior intrusion by the police officers; thus, the Coolidge doctrine is not applicable.

While appellant's use of plain view is inappropriate here, the open view doctrine associated with Katz v. United States, 389 U.S. 347 (1967), is helpful in resolving his claim that the officers' observation of marijuana represents an unreasonable search proscribed by the Fourth Amendment. In Katz, the Supreme Court rejected any lingering notions that search and seizure analysis was grounded in trespass doctrine that presupposed a physical intrusion into constitutionally protected areas:

For the Fourth Amendment protects people, not places. What a person knowingly exposes to the public, even in his own home or office, is not a subject of Fourth Amendment protection. But what he seeks to preserve as private, even in an area accessible to the public, may be constitutionally protected.

Id. at 351, 352 [citations omitted]. The Katz standard entails a two-part test:

first that a person have exhibited an actual (subjective) expectation of privacy and, second, that the expectation be one that society is prepared to recognize as "reasonable."

Id. at 361 (Harlan, J., concurring). Thus, if a police officer's observations broach a defendant's reasonable expectations of privacy, a search in the Fourth Amendment sense has occurred, and further Fourth Amendment analysis then addresses the reasonableness of that search. State v. Lee, Utah, 633 P.2d 48, 54 (1981) (Maughan, C. J., dissenting). See also: State v. Kaaheena, 575 P.2d 462, 466 (Hawaii 1978).

The facts of the instant case clearly reveal that appellant did not harbor a reasonable expectation of privacy concerning the marijuana growing on his property. Appellant grew marijuana openly without protective covering within arm's length of his neighbor's property. Furthermore, the investigating officers openly observed the marijuana without any precedent efforts to uncover or reveal the plants, nor did their observation require an intrusion upon appellant's property. Given such a bold enterprise conducted in broad daylight next to a neighbor's property where appellant must have known his efforts would be observed by others, there is simply no support for the proposition that appellant even harbored a subjective expectation of privacy, and it would

require an even greater leap of faith to conclude that society would deem such an expectation reasonable. Because appellant's brazen activities are not worthy of Katz protection, the investigating officers' open view observation did not constitute a Fourth Amendment search.

In addition, this Court's analysis in State v. Lee, supra, further buttresses respondent's claim that a search did not occur. In Lee, the defendant was suspected of burglarizing a mobile home sales park. As the investigating officer walked to the front door of defendant's home, he noticed heavy equipment in a truck camper parked in the driveway. Shining a light through the camper window, the officer noticed an arc welder and several tool boxes that had been stolen earlier that evening.

Following his conviction, the defendant appealed contending, inter alia, that the discovery of stolen equipment in his truck constituted an unconstitutional search. Rejecting this claim and affirming his conviction, this Court held:

Thus, an officer is not expected to ignore what is exposed to observation from a position where he is lawfully entitled to be. . . . That does not constitute a "search" within the meaning of the constitutional provisions.

633 P.2d at 51. See also: State v. Seagull, 95 Wash. 2d 898, 632 P.2d 44 (1981).

Similarly, in the instant case, Officer Cox and Chief Hannah could not be expected to ignore marijuana plainly and openly exposed to observation, and viewed from a position where the officers were lawfully entitled to be. Thus, their observation does not constitute a Fourth Amendment search. Therefore, the trial court correctly denied appellant's motion to suppress evidence seized under the warrant.

POINT II

THE REQUESTING OFFICER'S FAILURE TO SIGN
THE SEARCH WARRANT AFFIDAVIT DOES NOT
NULLIFY THE SEARCH WARRANT.

Following the observation of appellant's property which revealed marijuana growing thereon, Chief Hannah executed an affidavit upon which a search warrant was issued. Altogether four or five warrant affidavits were executed by Chief Hannah, but the one returned to the magistrate following the search was not signed at the bottom, although it was signed by him at the top following the words "The peace officer undersigned, being sworn, states on oath" (Trial Record, ST 120). The other warrants not returned to the magistrate were signed by Chief Hannah at the top and bottom of the affidavit (Trial Record, ST 119-121). Appellant contends that Chief Hannah's failure to sign the returned affidavit in the space immediately above the executing magistrate nullified the search warrant.

In evaluating appellant's claim it is wise to consider the Supreme Court's admonition against highly technical objections to the completeness of a search warrant and the affidavit in support thereof:

If the teachings of the Court's cases are to be followed and the constitutional policy served, affidavits for search warrants, such as the one involved here, must be tested and interpreted by magistrates and courts in a common sense and realistic fashion. They are normally drafted by nonlawyers in the midst and haste of a criminal investigation. Technical requirements of elaborate specificity once enacted under common law pleadings have no proper place in this area.

United States v. Ventresca, 380 U.S. 102, 108 (1965). Here, this Court is faced with such an objection. It is clear from his testimony that Chief Hannah thought that he was properly executing the affidavit by signing at the top (ST 118, 119). Furthermore, Chief Hannah did attach his signature, albeit at the top, swearing an oath that the statements that followed were true. In addition, at least one of the search warrant affidavits not returned to the magistrate was signed at both the top and the bottom.

In People v. Gloss, 109 Cal. Rptr. 583, 34 Cal. App. 3d 74 (1973). Appellant was charged with and convicted of both the possession and sale of marijuana. On appeal, appellant argued that the search warrant was defective

because a two-page statement of facts attached to the supporting form affidavit had not been signed by the affiant. Citing Ventresca, supra, the court of appeal rejected appellant's claim and held that "[s]uch an extremely technical and formalistic argument is inappropriate. . . ." and that "the two-page attachment was obviously incorporated into the affidavit." 109 Cal. Rptr. 587, 588.

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